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ndependent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of M/s. Criss Financial Holdings Limited

Report on the standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Criss Financial Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and fo the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 March 2020, profit, changes in equity and its

Cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
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of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process

AN EPRN
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We-also:

* lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are req

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial stateme
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disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent applicable. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

a. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

b. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

c. Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
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d. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*March, 2020
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

e. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure-B8”.

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements — Refer
Note 30 to the financial statements. '
ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the investor education and
protection fund by the company.

For Raju and Prasad

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 003475S

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02.06.2020

’
[ -

S. Ranga an
Partner
\ M. No: 022738
VoI 2 921 28 ARRACENG\D
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to Our Report of even date to the members of Criss Financial Holdings Limited

on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31 March, 2020.

I (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company

and the nature of the assets.

(c) As the company doesn’t hold any immovable properties in the name of the company, the
reporting requirement under Para 3 (i) (c) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is

not applicable.

As the company has neither purchased raw materials, stores nor maintained any stocks, the
reporting requirement under Para 3 (ii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not

applicable.

iii. The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

iv.  The company has neither granted any loans and advances nor given guarantees in respect of
persons described in section 185 and 186 of companies act, 2013. Hence, the reporting under

Para 3(iv} of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

v The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73

and 74 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified.
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vi. As per the information given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance

of cost records under section 148 (1) of the companies Act 2013.

vii.  a) The company is.regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Employee State
Insurance, Employee Provident fund, Professional Tax, Income Tax, Goods and Services tax, and

any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, following are the disputed dues
relating to income tax, wealth tax, cess and sales tax, which have not been deposited as at 31%
march, 2020.

Nature Nature of Dispute Amount (Rs.) | Period to which | Forum where
of Statue the amounts the dispute is
relate (A.Y) pending

Income tax assessment-cum-
demand order for AY 2017-18 Rs.1,43,89,094 AY 2017-18 CIT ()

u/s 69A read with sec-115BBE of

the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note: The company received demand for Rs.1,87,36,367. Out of which the company has deposited
20% of the demanded amount (i.e.Rs.37,47,273) under protest, which is disclosed as Current Tax
Assets in Balance sheet. Hence, only 80% of the demanded amount wh:ch has not been deposited
as at 31% march, 2020 is shown under disputed due.

Income
Tax

viii. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or

debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

ix. ~ The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(Including debt instruments). Further, the term loans taken by the company were applied for

the purpose for which they were obtained.

X. Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us,
we have neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the Company, noticed ~~

reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.
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According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, during the year the Company has not paid/provided managerial

remuneration. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x\ii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of Companies Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as

required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has made private placement of shares during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not

appiicable.

The Company is registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For Raju and Prasad
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 003475S

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 02.06.2020 <
S han
Partner
M. No: 022738

VOTN: 202 Z TR ARARCETENT
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Criss Financial Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements

of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management'’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining interna! financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (1CAr’).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and pla

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financ
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over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and'appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

[ [N, ERSSERE A O S, =t _ . % 0 oo~ 1 — - - 0 e

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of rﬁanagement and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material

financial statements.
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively for the year ended 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Raju and Prasad Chartered
Accountants

FRN: 003475S

Place: Hyderabad XY %7 \ —_
: 02.06.2020 e )?* | KQ“M
Date: 02.06. % E YR
S.  nganathan
Partner
_ M. No: 022738
OOTITN 1= 96022 128 AARACE TENS
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CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at Mar 31, 2020

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loan perifolio
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Non-financial assets
Current Tax Assets {net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other non financial assets
Total non-financial assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Subordinated liabilitics
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)
Provisions
Other non financial liabilities
Total non-financial liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For Raju and Prasad

Chartered Accountants

ICAL Firm registration number : 0034755

HYDERABAD

Partner
Membership No.022738

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02-06-2020

Notes
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{Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

As At
31 March. 2020

60,098,414
4,059,889
1,675,088,793
89,892,984
1,833,140,080

3,747273
1,534,694
820,674
453,811
11,157,826
17,714,278

1,850,854,358

1,133,572,602
1,612,787
16,145,783
1,151,331,172

50,375,699
537,137
7,064,991
57,977,827

48,464,100
593,081,259
641,545,359

1,850.854,358

As At
31 March, 2019

10,884,164
3,777,370
1,023,697,378
18,629,228
1,056,988,140

1,436,262
881,535
680,032

2,762,909

5,760,738

1,062,748,878

500,428,653
1,377,636
9,589,771
511,396,060

59,055,867
192,088
1,420,080
60,668,035

48,464,100
442,220,683
490,684,783

1,062,748,878

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Criss Financial Holdings Limited

Director

DIN No. 00004842

Director
DIN No. 06436957

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02-06-2020



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Statment of Profit and Loss for the yvear ended March 31, 2020

(Amount in rupees unless othenwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes March 31. 2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue from operations
Interest income 19 304,578,493 327458368
Net gain on faic value changes - 105,411
Commission income 19432935 11,937.028
Others 20 4,257 235442
Total revenue from operations 324.015.685 339,736,249
Other income 21 22,795,836 60,170,222
Total income 346,812,521 399,906 471
Expenses
Finance cost 12 89325484 149,005,066
[mpairment on financial instruments 23 6,760,021 {316,406)
Employee benefit expenses 24 37,783,480 46,897.479
Depreciation and amortization expense 10 315,690 [,417,804
Other expenses 25 10,091,644 8,318,169
Total expenses 144,876,319 205,322,112
Profit before tax 201,936,202 194,584,359
Tax expense:
Current tax 51,614,124 56,891,609
Deferred tax (64.770) (212,635}
Income tax expense 51,549354 56.678.954
Profit for the period 150,386,848 137905405
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans {133,746) 134,893
[ncome tax effect 33,664 (39.281)
Total comprehensive income for the period 150,286,766 138,001,017
Earnings per skare (equity share, par value of Rs. 10 each)
Computed on the basis of total profit for the period
Basic 27 3103 40.11
Diluted 27 3103 40.11
Summary ol sigmificant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,
Ags per our report of even date
For Raju and Prasad For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Criss Financial Hoidings Limited

[CAI Firm registration number ; 0034753

5 Ranm
Partner

Membership No 022738

Director
DIN No 00004842

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02-06-2020

L4
Padn m{m

irector
DIN No, 06436957

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02-06-2020



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated}

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash fMlow from operating activities
Profit before tax 231,936,202 194,584 359
Adjustments for:
Interest on incoma 1a% 871,658 4,168,865
Depreciation and amortization 10 915,69 1417 804
Provision for gratuity 24 207,033 69,101
[mpairment on Financial !nstruments 23 6,651,838 (651,167
Net gain on fair value changes - (05411
Other provisions and write offs 23 108,115 {108,024y
Share based payment to employees 25 573,810 114,504
Operating profit before working capital changes 211,264,346 199,490,031
Movemenis in working capital :
Increase / {decrease) in other financial liabilities 6,556 013 {32.950,30)
[ncrease / (decrease) in provisions 4270 14,338,142
Increase / (decrease) in other non financial liabilities 5644911 (1,746,039)
(Increase} / decrease in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis (282519 16,899,760
{Increase) / decrease in toan portfolio (662,043,253) (83153
{Increase) / decrease in financial asseis {75.119,145) (13,766,005)
{Increase) / decrease tn other non financial assets (8.394,916) 12,940 368
Cash used in operations (522,370,293) 195,132,702
[neome taxes paid 161,165,950) (34,396,624)
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (583,536,243) 160,736,078
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 (628607 (1,027,205
Proceeds from derecognition of property, plant and equipment - 438,678
Net gain on fair value changes - 195,411
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (628,607) {483,114}
Cash flows from linancing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 17 250,000,100
Dividend paid 12 - (58,384,817
Dividend distribution tax paid 18 - (12,001,162
Borrowings {other than debt securities) (net} 12 633,143,949 (104,029 2200
Subordinated liabilities (net) 235,151 (251,473,659
Net cash from financing activities (C) 633,379,100 (175,888,759)
Net increased / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ () 49,214,250 (15,635,795)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 10,884,164 26,519,959
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (refer note 4) 60,098,414 10,884,164
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the slandalone financial statements

As per our ceport of even date
For Raju and Prasad

ICAl Firm registration number : 0034758
Chartered Accountants

R

L
5 Ranganathan
Pariner
Membership No 022738

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 02-06-2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Criss Financial Holdings Limited

Dt

Gangireddy
Director
DIN No. 0004842

i "eTNE an
Director
DIN No. 06436957

Place: Hyderabad
Date; 02-06-2024
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CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keertana Financial Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

2.

b)

Corporate information

Criss Financial Holdings Limited (formerly Keertana Financial Limited) (*CFL’ or ‘the Company’) is a
public company limited by shares domiciled in India and incorporated under the provision of the
Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’) on 20th August, 1992.The Company is registered as a non-deposit
accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (*“NBFC-ND’) with the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’). The
Company is engaged in the business of finance by providing Individual Loans, Small Business Loans,
Mortgage Loans and Group Loans.

Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance in preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {(as amended
from time to time).

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous
GAAP). The company has been preparing its financial statements in accordance with Ind AS from the year
ended 31 March 2019

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) instruments and other financial assets held for trading all of which have
been measured at fair value. Further the carrying values of recognized assets and liabilities that are hedged
itemts in fair value hedges, and otherwise carried at amortized cost, are adjusted to record changes in fair
value attributable to the risks that are being hedged. The Standalone financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupees (INR).

Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
generally reporied gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to
having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts without being
contingent on a future event, the parties aiso intend to settle on a net basis in ali of the following
circumstances:

a. The normal course of business
b. The event of default
c. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and/or its counterparties

Significant accounting policies

a) Use of estimates, judgments and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and
future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuit |in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrving amounts of assets or liabilities in [future
periods.




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keertana Financial Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Amotnt in Rupees unfess otfierwise stated)

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

i} Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

ii) Fair value measurement:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the batance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of tnputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

(iii) Impairment of loan portfolio

Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining an impairment allowance for loans and advances. In estimating these cash flows, the
Company makes judgments about the borrower’s financial situation. These estimates are based on
assumptions about a number of factors such as credit quality, level of arrears etc. and actual results may
differ, and resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance.

(iv) Provisions other than impairment on loan portfolio

Provisions are held in respect of a range of future obligations such as employee entitlements and
litigation provisions. Some of the provisions involve significant judgment about the likely outcome of
various events and estimated future cash flows. The measurement of these provisions involves the
exercise of management judgments about the ultimate outcomes of the transactions, Payments that are
expected to be incurred afier more than one year are discounted at a rate which reflects both current
interest rates and the risks specific to that provision.

(v} Other estimates:
These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc.

b) Recognition of income and expense
The Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

(i) Interest income and expense:

Interest revenue is recognized using the effective interest method (EIR). The effective interest method
calculates the amortized cost of a financial instrument and allocates the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into
account all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment options) and
includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral
part of the EIR, but not fitture credit losses.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and lS
therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3°, the Company calculates interest income by applyin :

ipfe ate Ia\the net amortized cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures apd
credit id,\the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

L.;:'j

5=l

sl



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keertana Financial Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020 fAmount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

c)

d)

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the
financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These
include fees and commissions payable to arrangers and other expenses such as external legal costs,
provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible asset

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of
item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when
incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Intangible Asset
Intangible assets represent software expenditure which is stated at cost less accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation

i. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment provided on a written down value method at the
rates arrived based on useful life of the assets, prescribed under Schedule I of the Act, which also
represents the estimate of the useful life of the assets by the management.

ii. Property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs.5,000 individually are fully depreciated in the year
of purchase.

The Company has used the following useful lives o provide depreciation on its Property, plant and

Asset Category Useful Life {in vears)
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Computers & Printers 3
Office Equipment 5
Amortization
Depreciation on intangible assets provided on a written down value method at the rates based
on useful life of the assets
Asset Category Useful Life (in vears)
Software (H.O) 10
~Software ( Branches ) 6

HO



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keertana Financial Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {(Amonnt in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

€)

Impairment

i) Overview of principles for measuring expected credit loss ('ECL') on financial assets.

[n accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company is required to measure expected credit losses on its
financial instruments designated at amortized cost. Accordingly, the Company is required to determine
lifetime losses on financial instruments where credit risk has increased significantly since its
origination. For other instruments, the Company is required to recognize credit losses over next 12
month period. The Company has an option to determine such losses on individual basis or collectively
depending upon the nature of underlying portfolio. The Company has a process to assess credit risk of
all exposures at each year end as follows:

The provision on outstanding loan portfolio shall be higher of:

a. ECL model based computation, as presented below; or

b. RBI provision norms applicable for loans as per Master Direction: RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45
DNBR.PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 1, 2016

Asset / Portfolio Classification:

Stage |
These represent exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. The Company has assessed that all
standard exposures (i.e. exposures with no over dues) and exposure upto 30 day overdues fall under
this category. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company measures ECL on such assets over next 12
months,

Stage II
Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are

classified under this stage. Based on empirical evidence, significant increase in credit risk is witnessed
after the overdues on an exposure exceed for a period more than 30 days. Accordingly, the Company
classifies all exposures with overdues exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage. The
Company measures lifetime ECL on stage 11 loans,

Stage 11
All exposures having overdue balances for a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaults

and are classified under this stage. Accordingly, the Company measures lifetime losses on such
exposure. Interest revenue on such contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortized cost (net of impairment allowance) instead of the gross carrying amount.

Methodology for calculating ECL

The Company determines ECL based on a probability weighted outcome of factors indicated below to
measure the shortfalls in collecting contractual cash flows. The Company does not discount such
shortfails considering relatively shorter tenure of loan contracts.

Key factors applied to determine ECL are outlined as follows:

Probability of default (PD) - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
given time horizon.

Exposure at default (EAD) — It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Company at a future date
after considering repayments by the counterparty before the default event oceurs.

Loss given default (LGD) — It represents an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event
of default occurs.

Forward looking information
While estimating the expected credit lesses, the Company reviews macro-ecenomic gevelopments
curring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company anjlyses if there




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keertana Financial Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Amount in Rupees unless otherwise siated)

g)

h)

by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company
based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be
always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in the methodology to reflect
such macro-economic trends reasonably.

Write-offs

Loans are written off {either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery, This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-off’s. All such
write-off are charged to the Profit and Loss Statement, Any subsequent recoveries against such loans
are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

ii) Non financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets,
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available, If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Revenue From Contracts with Customers

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers {other than financial assets to which
Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment model as set
out in Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, The Company identifies contract(s) with
a customer and its performance obligations under the contract, determines the transaction price and its
allocation to the performance obligations in the contract and recognises revenue only on satisfactory
completion of performance obligations. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received
or receivable.

a) Commission income is eamed by sale of services and products of other entities under distribution
arrangements. The income so eamed is recognised on successful sales on behalf of other entities
subject to there being no significant uncertainty of its recovery.

b) The company recognizes revenue from advertisement activities upon satisfaction of performance
obligation by rendering of services underlying the contract with third party customers.

Leases
Short term leases not covered under Ind AS 116 are classified as operating lease, and lease payments
during the year are charged to statement of profit and loss

Retirement and Employee benefits
The Company participates in various employee benefit plans, Post-employment benefits are classified
as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the
Company’s only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and
investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognized as
expense during the period when the employee provides service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the
Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees. The related actuarial and
investment risks fall on the Company. The present value of the defined benefit obligations is calculated
using the projected unit credit method.

The Company operates following employee benefit plans:




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keertana Financial Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Amonnt in Rupees unless otherwise staied)

i) Employee Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure when an employee renders the
related service.

ii) Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment
to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and
years of employment with the Company. The Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan,
which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation.

Net interest recognized in prefit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan
assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability
or asset through other comprehensive income. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the retum on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

iii} Leaves
The service rules of the Company do not provide for the carry forward of the accumulated leave
balance and leaves to credit of employees are encashed periodically at average gross salary.

iv) Employee Stock Option Plan

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments in form of employee stock options, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-settled
transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using the Black Scholes
valuation model. That cost is recognized in employee benefits expense, together with a corresponding
increase in Stock Option Outstanding reserves in Other equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.
Service and nen-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The dilutive
effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

Income taxes

Current Taxes
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with The Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting
date. Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognizgd outside profit
or loss (either in gther comprehensive income or in equity).




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keertana Financial Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Amonnt in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

)

Deferved Taxes
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e  Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

¢ Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temperary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it becomes
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred taxes are recognized as income tax benefits or expenses in the income statement
except for tax related to the FVOCI instruments. The Company also recognizes the tax consequences of
payments and issuing costs, related to financial instruments that are classified as equity, directly in
equity.

The Company only off-sets its deferred tax assets against liabilities when there is both a legal right to
offset and it is the Company’s intention to settle on a net basis.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT}

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as curremt
tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognized for MAT credit available only to the extent that it
is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period
for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the vear in which the Company recognizes
MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as
part of deferred tax asset. The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement™ asset at each reporting
date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax
during the specified period.

Earnings per share (EPS)
The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS33 on Earnings
per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing the dilutive eamings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive afid that either
reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keertana Financial Limited)}

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

k)

m)

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the level of provision
by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to un-winding of discount over passage of time is
recognized within finance costs.

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity. The Company does not have any contingent assets in the financial
statements.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity, Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial Assets - All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measturement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
¢ Loan Portfolio at amortized cost

=  Loan Portfolio at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

s Investment in equity instruments and mutual funds at fair value through profit or loss

e  Other financial assets at amortized cost

Loan Portfolio at amortized cost:

Loan Portfolio is measured at amortized cost where:

» coniractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified datces, that represent solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI)on the principal amount outstanding; and

¢ are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual
cash flows.

Loan Portfolio at FVOCI:

Loan Portfolio is measured at FVOCI where:

+ contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding; and

o the financial asset is held within a business model where objective is achieved by bpth collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keertana Financial Limited)

Nates to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 {4Amont in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Business model: The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to
generate cash flows. That is, where the Company’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash
flows from the assets, the same is measured at amortized cost or where the Company’s objective is to
collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets, the same is
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH). If neither of these is applicable
(e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of
‘other” business model and measured at FVPL,

SPP1: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect coniractuat cash flows (i.e. measured at
amortized cost) or to collect contractual cash flows and sell (i.e. measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income}, the Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (the *SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Company
considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e.
interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks
and a profit margin that is consistent with a.basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms
introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the
reated financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortized cost,
as mentioned above, is computed using the effective interest rate method.

After initial measurement, these financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR} method less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR,
The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model described
in Note: Impairment of financial assets (refer note 3(e)).

Effective inferest method - The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost
of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. The amortized cost of the financial asset is adjusted if
the Company revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted amortized cost is calculated
based on the original or latest re-estimated EIR and the change is recorded as ‘Interest and similar
income” for financial assets. Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for loan portfolio other
than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL

Equity instruments and Mutual Funds

Equity instruments and mutual funds included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the Profit and Loss Statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. All financial liabilities are
recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual cash flows from the asset expire or it




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keertana Financial Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020 {Amaount in Rupees nnless otherwise stated)

n)

0)

A financial Hability is derecognized from the balance sheet when the Company has discharged its
obligation or the contract is cancelled or expires.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using various
valuation techniques.

Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a
liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Company’s accounting policies require, measurement of certain financial / non-financial assets and
liabilities at fair values (either on a recurring or non-recurring basis). Also, the fair values of financial
instruments measured at amortized cost are required to be disclosed in the said financial statements.

The Company is required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial / non-financial assets and
liabilities, either measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, using a three level fair-
value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurement).

Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy described as follows:

o Level I financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has
access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are
sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance
sheet date.

e Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the
entire period of the instrument’s life.

o Level 3 financial instruments — include one or more unobservable input where there is little
market activity for the asset/liability at the measurement date that is significant to the
measurement as a whole.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shoit-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in vaiue.




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes (o the Financial Statemenis for the vear ended March 31, 2020

4: Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
On current accounts
Deposit with original maturity of less than three months

£: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Deposit with remaining maturity of less than 12 months
Deposit with remaining maturity of more than 12 months
Margin money deposit (refer nots below}

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note: Represent macgin money deposits placed to avail term loans from banks and non banking financial companies

6: Loan portfolio

Term Loans

Loan Portfolio

Less: Impairment Allowance
Total Net

{a) Secured by Tangible assels ( Gold, Property including land and buildings)
(b) Unsecured

Total - Gross

Less: lmpairment Allowance

Total - Net

(a}) Public Sector

(b} others

Total - Gross

Less: Intpairment Allowance
Total - Net

{a) Within India

{b) Outside [ndia

Total - Gross

Less: mpairment Allowance
Total - Net

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
0 4721
60,098 414 10,879 443
60,098,414 10,884,164
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
4,059 889 37771370
4,059,839 3777370
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1,685,846 850 1,023, 803,637
(6,758,097 (106,259}
1.679,088,793 1,023,697,378
77,089 687 63,755,515
1,608 757,203 960,048,122
1,685,846,390 1.023,803,637
(6,758.097) {106,259)
1,679,088,793 1,023,697,.378
1.685,846,890 1,023,803,637
1.685,846,390 1,023,803,637
{6,758,097) (106,259)
1,679,088,793 1,023,697.378
1,685,846 890 1.023,803.637
1,685,346,890 1,023,803,637
(6,758,097} (106.259)
1,679,088,793 1,023,697,378

The table below discloses credit quality of 1he Company's exposures (net of impairment loss allowance) as at reporting date:

Portfolio classification as at March 31, 2020

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 11 Staze 111 Total
Net Porifolio as on March 31, 2020
New portfolio 1.674 072 658 4 560,563 455,572 1.679 088,793
Total 1.674.072 658 4. 560 563 455,572 1.679.088.793




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars | I
io as on March 31 2020
1 758
Gross Portfolic
Particulars Stage 1 Stage 11
Gross carmying amount as at Aoril 01, 2019 1.023.760.717 42.921
MNew assels originated 2.768.500.731
Assets renaid (2 106 414 5561 (42 9213
Write ofTs
Inter-stage movements
Staee [
Staee II 14.578.826) 4578826
Staee 111 479 813
Gross carrvine amount as at March 31. 2020 1 620 788253 4. 578 826
Movement for the ended March 2019

Particulars Stage | Stawe 11
Gross carrving amount as at Aoril 01 2018 1.023 376920 73.528
New assets orizinated 2.439.500.189
Assets repaid (2.439.074.475) {114.875)
Write offs 42,351
Inter-stare movements
Stage [
Stage 1] 419171 41917
Staze 111
Gross carrving amount as at March 31. 2019 1.023 760717 4291
Particulars Staga 1 Stage 1§
Opening Balance 90.096 16.163
Proviston made/ {reversed) durine the vear 6.609.838 17.807
Inter-stage movements

Staee-1 15817 581N

Staee-11 (109 109

Stage-11] (43)
Write off
Closing Balance 6715594 18.262
Mote -

Stage [11

(108 185y
108.183

479813
479.811

Staee 111

270 836

{563.246}
292,410

Staga I11

132.375

48
(108.183)
24.240

a) ECL for Stage [ has increased primarily on account of change of provisioning policy during the year
b) ECL for stage 11 has increased primarily on account of new assets originated during the year

¢) ECL for stage Il has increased pnmarily on account of new assets originated during the year

ECL movement the
Particulars Stage [ Stage (1
Opening. Balance 449407 55709
Provision made/ {reversed} during the year (665.320) 56.232
Inter-staee movements
Stage-| 306020 (53 438y
Stage-11 (4B} 1
Stage-111
Write off 42351
Closing Ralance 90 096 16,163
Note -

a) ECL for Stage [ has increased primarily on account of new assets originated during the year
b) ECL for stage Il has increased primarily an account of new assels originated during the year

Stare 111
265.051
279941 2989

-252582
0

12924100

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

Total
1.023.8303.638
2.768.500.731
(2 106 5635 6621
108.183

1.685.846.890

Total
1.023.721.234
2.439.500.189
(2.439.752.596)
334,761

1.023.803.638

Total
106.259
6.760.021

(108.183)
6.758.097

Total
770,167
(329147

(3347611
106,259

¢) ECL for stage 101 has declined primarily on account of write off and recovenies/collections made by the Company during the



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amourtt in rupees unless othenwise stated)

7: Other financial assets (at amortised cost) March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
A. Security deposits
Unsecured, considerad good 779,650 813,850
F79.650 813,850
B.Loans and advances to related parties March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Inter corporate advances (repayable on demand) * 80,910,408 -
80,910,408 -

*Please refer Note 28 for further details

C. Other assets March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Term deposits placed with non banking financial companies# 2,202,926 17815378
Other assets - -
8,202,926 178315378
Taotal (A+B+(C) £0.802 984 18,629,228

# Represent margin money deposits placed to avail term loans from non banking financial institutionstransactions.

8: Current tax Assets (net)} March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Advance income 1ax {net of provision) 3747273 -

3747273 -
9: Deferred tax assets (net} March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Effects of deferred tax assets/ liabilities :
Deferred tax assets

Impairment of financial instruments 1,700,878 30943
Differences of written down value of Property, plant and equipment 543,226 612,269
Others {709.410) 793,050

1,534,694 1,436,262

Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on investments -
Others =

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 1,534,694 1,436,262

The Company oflsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

10: Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Furniture & Fixtures
Gross block (at cost)

At April 12019 1,990,591
Addition 248,131
Disposals

At March 31 2020 2,238,722
Depreciation

At April 12019 1,744,378
Charge for the year 229,837
Disposals

At March 31 2020 1,974,215
Net Carrying Amount

At March 31 2019 246,212
At March 31 2020 264,507
Intangible assets

Particulars Computer Software
Gross block (at cost)

At April 12019 1,451,460
Addition

Disposals

At March 31 2020 1,451,460
Amortization

At April 12019 771,428
Charge for the year 226,221
Disposals

At March 31 2020 997,649
Net Carrying Amount

At March 31 2019 680,032
At March 31 2020 453,811

{Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

11: Other non financial assets
Unsecured, considered good

Interest Receivable on Assigned Loans
Insurance Claim receivables

Prepaid Expenses

Other receivables

Other deposits

QOffice Equipment Computers

446,092 1,930,556

39,754 340,722

485.846 2,271,278

339,706 1,401,619

82,673 376,959

422,379 1,778,578

106,386 528,937

63,467 492 700

Total
1,451,460
1,451,460
771,428
226,221
997,649
680,032
453,811
March 31, 2020

2,506,784

1,906

8,631,136

18,000

11,157,826

Total

4,367,239
628,607

4,995,846

3,485,703
689,469

4,175,172

881,535
820,674

March 31, 2019

1,457,178

1,287,731
18,000
2,762,909



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

12: Borrowings (at amortised Cost)

(a) Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Term loans

Secured

[ndian rupee loan from banks 50,070,784 B
Indian rupee loan from non-banking financial companies 39,157,921 224,906,645
Unsecured

Indian rupee loan from non-banking financial company - =

Advances from related parties(unsecured) 1,044,343,897 275,522,008

Advance from related party carries interest rate @ 5% pa

with monthly interest repayment
Total Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,133,572,602 500,428,653

(b} Subordinated Liabilities (at amortised cost)
Indian rupee loan from related party (unsecured) 1,612,787 1,377,636

Leans from related party carries interest rate @ 15% p a with
monthly interest repayment

Total Subordinated Liabilities 1,612,787 1,377,636
Above amount includes

Secured borrowings* 89,228,705 224,906,645
Unsecured borrowings # 1,045,956,684 276,899,644
Net amount 1,135,185,389 501,806,289
Borrowings in India 1,135,185,389 501,806,289
Borrowings outside India o -
Total 1,135,185,389 501,806,289

* The Indian rupee loans are secured by hypothecation of book debts and margin money deposits.
# The Unsecured borrowings are in the nature of subordinated debt and advance from related parties
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CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
MNotes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

13: Other financial liabilities

Employee benefits payable

Expenses payable

Payable on assigned loans

Insurance premium collected and claims payable
Premium payable on redemption of preference shares
Sundry creditors

Other Payables

14: Current tax liabilies (net)
Provision for tax (net of advance tax)

15; Provisions
Provision for gratuity {net of contribution)
Provision for doubtfull claims

16. Other aon financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable

{Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
7,190,626 6,489,832
2,282,765 2076573
5,043,029 869,710
1.629 364 153,656

16.145.783 9.589.771

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

50375699 59,055,867

50,375,699 59.055.867
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

416,573 179,639

120,564 12,449

537,137 192,088

March 31, 2020 March 31, X019
7.064.991 1,420,080
7.064.991 1.420.080




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
17: Equity Share capital
Authorized

5,000,000 (March 31,2019: 50,000,000,) equity shares of Rs.10 each 50,000,000 50,000,000
50,000,000 50,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
4,846,410 (March,31.2019: 4,846,410) equity shares of Rs.10 each 48.464,100 48,464, 1(H)
fully paid up
Total 48,464,100 48,464,100

(a) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares of par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Any
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shar¢holders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.During the current financial year no dividend has been proposed by the company.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(b) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

. 3i-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Particulars Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Qutstanding at the beginning of the period 4,846,410 48,464,100 2,956,193 29,561,930
Issued during the period 1,890,217 18,902,170
4,846,410 48,464,100 4,846,410 48,464,100.00

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company:
As per the records of the Company, including register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the shareholding given below represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Name of the shareholder . .
Number of shares % of holding  Number of shares % of holding

Equity shares
Financial Limited 727 52.00 97.54% 727 97.54%



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

As At

31 March, 2020

As At

31 March, 2019

18: Other Equity
Money received against share warrants

Securities premium

Balance as per the last financial statements

Add: Premium on issue of equity shares

Less: Utilized for premium on redemption of Preference shares
Closing balance

General reserve
Share options outstanding reserve

Capital redemption reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements
Add: Addition during the year

Closing balance

Statutory reserve

Balance as per the last financial statements

Add: Amount transferred from surplus of profit and loss
Closing balance

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per the last financial statements

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other Comprehensive Income

Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve [@ 20% of profit after tax as required by
Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934]

Less: Preference shares Redemption

Less: Dividend on OCCRPS

Less: Dividend Distribution tax

Less: Dividend on Equity sharees

Less: Dividend on CCPS all class (includes dividend distribution tax)
Less: Dividend on OCCRPS (includes dividend distribution tax)

Less: Dividend on OCRPS all series (includes dividend distribution tax)
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Total other equity

240,601,080 9,503,150
. 231,097,930
240,601,080 240,601,080
52,086 52,086
688,314 114,504
16,760,780 16,760,780
16,760,780 16,760,780
57,029,584 29,429,381
30,057.353 27,600,203
87,086,937 57,029,584
127,662,649 87,647,816
150,386,848 137,905,405
(100,082) 95,612
(30,057,353)  (27,600,203)
z (12,001,169)
- (58,384,812)
247,892,062 127,662,649

:
593,081,259 / 442,220,683




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

19: Interest Income

Measured at amortised cost
Interest on portfolio loans

interest on macgin money deposits®
[nterest on inter corporate advances

{Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

For the vear ended
March 31, 2020

300,548,679
1,115,509
2,914,305

304,578,493

*Represent margin money deposits placed to avail term loans from banks and non baking financial companies

20 Others
Recovery agamst loans written ofT

21; Other income
Advertisement income
Miscellaneous income

22: Finance cost
On Borrowings {other than dabt securities)
On sub-ordinated liabilities
On incorne tax

Cwher Anance cost

23: Impairment on financial instroments
Measured at amortised cost

Impairment on portfolio loans

Porifolio loans written off

24: Emplovee benefits expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution 1o provident fund and Other Funds
Expenses on Employee Stock Option Plan

StalT welfare expenses

15: Other expenses

Rent

Rates and taxes

Bank charges

Office maintenance

Repairs and maintenance

Electricity charges

Travelling and Conveyance expenses
Communication expenses

Credit Bureau Expenses

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional charges
Auditors remuneration {refer deiails below)
Medical Expenses

Professional Tax Charpges

Advertisement Expenses

Chher provisions and write off

GST Late filing Fee

NSDL Joining and Custodian Fee

Interest on TDS

Loss from theft & Fraud

Met loss on derecognition of plant, property and egquipment
CSR Expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

4,257
4,157

22,500,000
396,836

85845880
2,400,946
871,658
207,000

89,325,484

6,651,838
108,183

35.580,009
1,550,163
573,810
79,498

37,

1.378.283
2301
3,680,363
684,955
36,833
447,773
66,583
2270
43,582
381,804
299,199
508,750

5,000
66,120
108,115

9,810
2,856

2,328,130
910

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

326,104,076
1,354,292

327.458.368

235,442
235.442

60,000,000
170.222

123,167,888
21,399 285
4,168 865
269,028

149,005,066

(651,167}
334,761

[ e

45,709 808
654,996
114,504
41817

1,698,799
13,332
995,72¢
1,202,830
25,348
521,492
313,724
6,471
137,756
584,087
441,270
430,400
30,000

7.500
100,558
(108,024}

6,500
22250

268,107
398,676
1,154,888



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Nuoies to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{Amoun in rupees unless othenvise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Payment to audiiors
As auditor:
Audit fee 473,000 428,900
Certification fee = =
Out of pocket expenses 35750 1,500

508,750 430.400

26: Income Tax Expense
A. Income tax expense in the statement of profir and loss consists of:
Current Income Tax:
Income Tax 51 614,124 56,891,609
Deffered Tax (98,723) (212,655}
Income Tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 51,515,401 56.678.954
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax arising on mcome and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income (33.664) 39,281
Total 51,481,737 56.718.235

B. The reconciliation between the provision of [ncome Tax of the company and amounts computed by applying the Indian statviory Income
Tax rate to profit before taxes is as follows:

Profit before tax 201,802,456 194,719,252
Enacted tax rates in lodia 35V 20.12%
Computed iax expense 50,789,642 56,702,246
Effect of :

Non-deductible expenses BG5 729 1,213,975
Additional Deductions as per lncome tax {267.313) (467 554)
Brought Forward Losses -
Others 153.67¢ (730,433}
Total Income Tax expense 51,481,737 56.718.235

27: Earning per Share

Net profil after tax as per Staternent of Profit and Loss 150,386,348 137,905,405
Less: Dividend on CCPS (all class} & OCRPS (all series) and tax thereon - -
Net profit for calculation of basic earnings per share 150,386,348 137,205,405
Net profit as above 150,386,848 137,905,405
Add: Dividend on CCPS (all class) & OCRPS (all series) and tax thereon - -
Net profit for calculation of diluted earnings per share 150,386,348 137,905,405

Calcnlation of weizhted average number of equity shares for basic EPS
Equity shares
Opening No. of shares 4,846 410 2,956,193

Add: Fresh issued during the year 481,617
4,846,410 3.437.810

Effeci of dilution

Conversion of OCRPS -

Conversion of share wartanis = =

Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS 4,846,410 3.437.810

Basic earnings per share (In rupees) 3103 40.11

Diluted earnings per share (In rupees) 3103 40.11

Momenal value per share: Rs 10 { Previous year. Rs. 10)




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financlal Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020
(Amouns in rupees unless otherwise stated)

28: Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single business segment i.e Ginancing, since the nature of the loans are exposed to similar risk and retumn profiles hence they are collectively
operating under 4 sinple segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108 an *Operating Segments” notified umder the Comparies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standacds) Amend Rules, 2016 The Company operates in a single geographical seg ie d j

29; Related parties under Ind A5 24 with whom transactions have taken place during the period,
1. Holding Company
Spandana Sphoorty Fi ial Limited (w 2 F December 27, 2018)

1L Other related party in accordance with lod AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place
a) Abhiram Marketing Services Limited
b) Spandana Rural and Urban Development Organization
<) Spandana Mutual Benefit Trust
d)Spandana Employee Welfare Trust

L. Key Management Personnel
a) Mrs Padmaja Gangireddy - Dicector

Tr th STy . yrayaun
. during year .
5. No Related Party Wature of Transactions ended March dt;;lng year ended 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
arch 31, 2019
312020
Funenses reimbursement ST 1M 186,415 dih {6 RAT
s _ _— Proceeds from issue of Equity Shares 250,000,100
Sp phoorty fi { Lim Aduance recerved 1 W00 (W) NV 1 1R6A 477 198 . 27y 0
Advance repaid 448927198 1,244 500000 (1.053.000.000} (272.927.198)
Interest paid &7 103.954 91 301 152 11343 8961 (2 594 140
Others 7111 523 (AT6 RO 1N
Purchases Eel R 366546
Commission Received 19,432 9346 11,937,028 8,459, 94| 904,260
Incentive Received
T Abhiram Marketing Services Limited ~ Unsecured Loan received 75,000,000
intarect naid and 795
Unsecured Loan eiven £0-000.000 80.000.00C
Literest Received 2914305 910,408
Others 91,367,101 94 891 483 {1,438 448, (133.70m
3 Wis Padmaja Gangireddy Rent paid 730,660 672,000 (81,557
Unsecured Loan received 131.500.004 318.400.000
4 ;m:ﬁﬁnw and Urban Development | red Loan Repaid 131 500 000 TR 400 160
Interest noid 1 7ol 9RE 14 194 155 1 R1TIRT 1945 4™
Insacured | nan received 45 500,000 5190 000
3 Spandana Mutual Benefit Trust Unsecured Loan Renaid 45.500.000 51.900.000
Interest naid 579 A58 T TIO ARG (166 24
| Insecured | nan received * 300 00N £ KO0 DON
6 Spandana Employee Welfare Trust [ Incecnred | aan Renaid ERT ] 8.800.000 /
Interest paid 9302 4434 245 f 12660541

Transactions duriny; the period are shown net of secvice /G5 T and inclusive of TDS



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{Amount n rupges unless otherwise stated)

not
Particulars A-Mar-20 March 31.201%
Claims acamst the © not acknowledee as debis: | tax order for FY 201617 18.736.367
Todtal 18.736.3467

The Company received an income 1a% assessment-cum-demand order for FY 2016-17, inter aliz, raising a demand of Rs 1,87,36,367/ {including interest} under section 6%A read with section
T13BBE ol the Income Tax Act, 1961 The Company has filed an appeal against this order before the Commussioner of Income Tax {Appeals) that will be heard in due course However, based on
the expert opinions obtained, e Company confident thal the matier will be decided in its favour Accordingly, the aloresand has been considerad as a conti hiability as al March 31,
2020 The Company has deposited Rs 37,47,273/- against such demard in the process of filling the aforesaid appeal

31: Fair Yalue

are a5
. Carrvine Value as st Fair Value as at

Particulars Mareh 31.2020 March31.2019 March31.2020 March 31. 2019
Financial Assets measured a1t FYOCL
Loan Porticho 1.679.088.793 1.023.697.378 1.686.335.345 1.033.847 561
Financial Assets measured at cost
Cash and cash eaquivalenis 60098 414 10,384,164 G008 414 10334164
Bank Balances other than cash and cash eauivalent 4.059 880 3777370 4.059 885 3TN
Other Financial Assets 89 892 084 18,679 278 89,892 084 18 620228
Taotal Financial Acurds L#35.140.408]1 LD56.588.140 LEFINEEG.052 TdWT.138.023
Rarrawimes (Orher than Deht Seenrines 1133572602 500 428 653 1134 548 317 507 12283
Suhardinated | iahilines 1 612 7/7 1 377 /36 1 612 THY 1377636
Oither financial liahilinies 16 145 7R3 9 5R9 771 16 145 T3 |

LLI51331.172 L1527 388 5134003233

The management assessed that carmymg value of financial asset exceps loan portfelio and financial liabiliues except bormowings {other than debt securities) approximate their fair value largety due
1o short term matunities of these mstruments

321 Fair Value Hierachy of essets awd liabilities
Fair valde measurement
The far value hierarchy 1s based on inputs 10 valuation techniques thal are used to measure (air value that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

Level 1 - Hierarchy meludes financial instruments of which prices 15 available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are nol traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques which maximise rhe use of observable market data {either
directly as prices or indirectly denved from prices) and rely as little as possible on entity-specific esumates If all significanl inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument 15 included i level 2

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs 15 not based on observable market data. the instrument 1s included in level 3 This is the case for unhisted equity securities, contingent
consideration and luded

| 107 asse i in level 3

The financial instruments sncluded in Level 2 of fair value tierarchy have been valued using quotes available for simular assets and habiliues in the active market The investments included in
Level 3 of fair value hierarchy have been valued using the cost approach 10 arrive at their fair value The cost of unquoted investments approximate the fair value because therc 15 a range of
possible far value measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range

The lollowing table summarizes financial assets and habilities measured at Fair value on a recurring basis and financial assets that are not measured at Fair value on a recurming basis [bat fair value
disclosure 1s required):-

L. The carrying amowat and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020 is as follows:

At amortized cost

Particulars Carrying Value  Fair Value Level -1 Level 2 Level3 Total
1.6T9.0BE 793 1.686.835.345 1 &68A B35 49 1 686 835 345
Tosl 1.6T9.088.703 1.686.835.345 1686835345 1.ARA.RRE 148
At amortized cost
Particulars Carrying Value Fair Valoe Level -1 Level 2 Level-3 Towl
Borrowines (Other than Debt Securities) 1133572602 1.134.548.817 1.134.548.817 1134548817
Subordinated Liabilities 1.612.787 1612787 1.612.787 1.612.787
Total L1335 185389 1136 16 LA 1.136.161.604 1136161 604
I1. The carrying antount and (wir value measurement hieravchy for assets amnd liabilities as at March 31, 2019 is as follows:
Ar amnrtired onci
Particals . . .
felars Carrying Value Fair Yalue Level -1 Level 2 Level-3 Total
I ewwm Partfoho at amontized cost 1023 97 7R 1 033 847 361 1 033 47 361
Tatal 12ART AT 1.033 RAT 341 1.03T.RIT. A1 10338472681
At amortized cost
Particulars . .
Carrying Value  Fair Value Level -1 Level 2 ]'_.evf-B Total
Borrowmnes { Other than Debt Securilies) S00.428.653 502122824 502122826 502122826
Subordinated Liabilities 1.377.63€ 1.377.636 1.377.626 1.377.636

Total 401806289 4N3.400.462 403500462 503.504.462



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{Amount 1n mupees unless otherwise stated)

Yalustion techrigue used

For Loan Portlolio

The scheduled future cash flows (meluding privcipal and nterest) are diseounted using the lending rate prevailing as at the Balance sheet dare The discounting factor 15 applied assuming the
cashflows will be evenly received i a month Further the overdue cashNows upto 90 Days (upto stage 2} are discounted assuming they will be recerved i the third month  Fairvalue of cashflows
for stage 3 loans are assumed as cammying value less provision for expected credit loss

For Borrowing
The fair value of fixed rate borrowings in determined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows usmg current market interest rate being charged for new borrowings
The fair value of floating rate borrowing 15 deemed 10 equal ils camying value

Mote: There have been ne transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 20|19

33: Capital Management

The Company’s obyective For capital management is to maximize 5" value, safeguard b continwity, meel the regulatory requirement and support the growth of the Company The
Company deletmines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic ins esiment plans The funding requarements are met through borrowings, retained
eamings and operating cash flows penerated

bharahnald

As an NBFC. the RBI requires us to a capital to risk weighted assets ratio {"CRAR"} consisting of Tier T and Tier 1) capital of 15% of cur agereeate nsk weighted assels
Further, the total of our Tier IT capilal cannot exceed 100% of our Tier 1 capital at any pomnt of ttme The capatal management process of the company ensures to maintam a healthy CRAR at all
the imes

The compary has a board appeoved policy on resource planning which states that the resource planning of the company shall be based on is Asser Liability Managernent (ALM) requirement The
policy of the company on resource planning will also cover the objectives of the regulatory requirement The policy prescribes the sources of fumds, theeshold far mix rom various sources, tenure,

manner of raising the funds etc

Regulatory Capital ks in T acsd

Pacliculars March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Tewr I Capital 6,26 02 4,985 68
Teir 1) Capital 67 16 14 84
Total Capital 6,295 18 4900 52
Risk weighted assets 17.970 44 10,246 85
Tewr L CRAR 34 65% 47 68%
Tew LI CRAR 037 0 14%
Tolal CRAR 3502% 47 BMy

CRAR 15 compated 1n line with RBI notificanon dared 13 March 2020 w r t implementation of Indian Accounting Standards and accordingly not comparable with CRAR as at 31st March 2019

34; Emplovee Benili¢ Plans
The Company has a defined beneflt pralnty plan Every

f
ployee who has p

the form of a qualifying insurance pohicy

The following tables summartzed the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded stats and

d (ive years or more of service 13 eligible for watugy, on
days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service subject to hmit of Rs 2,000,000 as per The Payment of Gratity Act, 1972 The scheme 13 funded with an insurance Company in

gratuity plan

Particulars March 31. 2000

Defined benefit oblization as at the b of the vear 176 /39 3017
Current service cost 193 506 73 117
Interest on defined benehit oblication 13 437 16 R&Y
Remeasurements- Actuarial {gain¥ Loss on total Habiities 133 144 134 893
Benefits pad 103 R451

Defined benefir oblieation as at the end of the vear 414873 1719.A34
Particulars March 31. 2020 Darch 31.ZU1%

Fair value of plan assets as at the bewinning of the vear
Actual return on olan assets

Actuarial rains

Emniover contributions

Renefits raid

Fair value of nlan sasete 2t at the end nf the vear

103.845
(1038431

Partirnlare March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Met defined benefit liabiliy! (asset) as at the beginming of the year 179,639 2331912
Expense charged to stalement of profir & loss 207,033 90.620
Amount d in other prehensive income 133,746 (134,893
Employer contribulions (103,845}
Wet defimed benefit linbility/ (asset) as at the end of the year 416,573 179.63%
Balance Sheet
March 30, 2020 March 31, 2019
416 571 110639
416573 179639




CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statemeats for tho yvear ended March 31, 2020

Particulars
Current service cost
Interest Cost

Toial

m
Particolars
Remeasurements- Acturial Gain/ (Loss)

Amnunt recoenised wader (Other Camnrahensive Income

Category of Assais
Fund manaaed by lnsurer
Tntal

Particalars

Thsemmt rabe

Fxnerted retum on nlan azsers

Rate nf Increase in ramnenzation levele
Retirement ave [vears)

Particulars

Discount rate (+Q 5%
Discount rate (-0 5%)
Salary Inflavion (+1%5}
Salarv [nflation (- 1%
Withdrawal Rate (+5%a)
Withdrawal Rate (-5%}

Particulars
1¥ear
IYear
3¥ear
4¥ear
5 Year
After vear 5

Discomnt rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the

March 31. 2020
193596

13.437

107,033

March 31. 2020
-133746
{133.746)

March 31, 2020
1,29
nee

Moaorch 31. 2070
RO

A

RS

59

March 31. 2020
{18255

19732

41 202
{3587
(32418

7233

Mareh 31. 2020
13 354

14.896

8606

3501

47184

103103

March 31,2019
13.737
16,883
40,620

March 31. 2019
134.893
134,593

March 31. 2009
™
L]

March 302009
T 4R%

Ma

5 NS

58

March 31.2019
(7.089

1617

16.054

(14124

i712n

{3.2461

March 31. 2019
6.983

9158

13.073

18,893

12.059

326135

[Amount m rupees uniless otherwase stated)

d term of the obibi

Expected rate of return en plam assets: This 13 based on the expectation of the average long term rate of retumn expected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obhgations

Selary lation rate: The of funire salary mereases considered takimg mie account the inflation, semonity, promotion and other relevant factors
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LAMOENL Wy uoess unless elbenuise statedd
35 Lewwes
Operaimg kease where the Conpany 15 a lessee
The Comipain s siguificaun leasimg, artangenients are w respoct of eperating beascs of’ aifice prenniscst Head office and branch officet The Head (Ofice and branch office proonses arc wencrally cemed on canceliable
termy of eleven monlhs witl or withoul escalavion clause however none of i kease agreement carties non-zanccllable kease penods There are no sub-leases

(T}

36: Amount pan able ¢o micro small dsil medis cnlerprises

At per informaion a ailable with the Company, Therz are no amgunts that necd e be distlesed o acsordance wil the Mizro Small and Medwon Encrpnse Devclopment Act, 2006 (ihe “MSMED'} pentainivg 1o
nicro or small enterpnisas

As al March 30 20200 & March 31, 2019 no supplicr has wlinated e Compame abol g stdos ox ivicro o sall colerpreses of e regisration with e approprisie aviorins wider MSMED

37 Risk M and fimancial obiceti
Risk 15 2n intcgral pant of (e Compam s business ad sound risk management is critical 10 Uw sucoess As 2 Onancial imerwedian e Compan is evposed Lo risks Diar are parlicular 1 il lending aod the
el ieoiumca within which i operstes and primarily includes eredil Ggmdity and madet tisks The Compane has 2 risk mmagcwent polics which covers nshs nssociated with (e Muaacial assers and liabilivies The
risk managemci polics is appeoyed be (he Board of Drcctors

4

T Compamy bas idemibed ad inpl i hensive policies and procedurcs ko assers monitor and manage sk Uwoughout e Company The risk g0 PrOSCss 15 conli b revicwed, i
and adapled i the coulc of chongimg risk soul:mu and the agilie of llv: risk managemenl process 13 momitored pind revcwed [or ng appropristeocss i the changing risk indscape The process of r.ommuom
ey ahuation of risks mcludgs Llaking siock ol the risk landscape on an cvent-driven basis

The Compans has an cloborake process [or risk Napor richs identificd by L busi i Nuclions arc o ically add d (romgly tnitigadineg actions o 2 i basis

TN Credit Rick

Crodit rizk be e rish, of hoss thal v acgur (e defrults by vur Boroners wder car loan sureemems In order 10 address credit sk, we bave stnngent credit assessmenn policies (or elicar selection bMeasarcs such
a3 wexifuing clic details. oding docunmeriation and the usage of credil borgaw daia 1o gel mfonuation on past credit beho ipur also supploment the ciforts for contanin mredit sk We also fllow x sy siemalic
methodalogs v the opening of new beanches which Lahes ane scoeunt (aciors such os We deoraud for credil in te area, inzonoc and market potemial: and socio-ccononic mid law mid order rushs in the proposed arca
Funher our chicol due diligenee procedwes cucomipast + anious I cos of diccks, desigucd 1o assess the qualin of the propesed greup and w confin that they mcal gur criterin

The Company is a rural focused MBFC with 2 geographicalls diversificd presence w India and ofler meone generation boans under e joim liabiline group model  prodaminamly 1o women [rom [ow - mcons
howsgholds in Rural Arcas Further o we focws on pros idog micro-boans in Rural Arcas oor eosulis of operations are alfecied by e porfomiance aud the Tulure grow th potetial of microfinance in real ndia Cur
clients Bpically have liniled sources of wcome savings and credil luistonics and our loons are npicalk pronded free orcoﬂmml Such chiculs wenerally do wed Tane o bigh Tevel of Niwancial resilicoce s, 25 0
resull, ey con be adverschy alfoeted by declining ditions aied natural calaminizs i addition we rely on dili anisnas cather than Lmgiblc ssscis as collarerak, which man nod b
effeetive i rocoscring he vl of our boans

Tn order (0 ntigare the impact of ceadin ok i the Mutore profitabilidy ke Company creawes unpmonent loss allowance basis hegber of the cxpeatcd eredit loss (ECL ) model or REI Pros iiomomng, Mo foe il
oumistanding kans as 31 balance sheer dae

The below discussion describes the Conpam *s appreach for assessing oparnnent 25 sioted 1o oode 3ed of (he sigmficant accouning polickes

The Compam delcmunes PD ou a colleativg basis by stranift ing Uhe endire porfole e mcanmghil coteyorics 25 discussed below

The Company uses histoncat »inage wlormation of its Inan penifplio 1o cstimate PO Baged on uncertamtics e nsks ansing [rom its aperations i dilleront geouraplucal siakes m the couviny , the Compauy bifurcaies
ke cmice portfolio inwe difTerent stales Further e Compam performs anabusis of ws delulls m1anous siates ouer dillerent obsonaation penods Sech obsen glion ime [rame warics dependie. upon the bpe of
omderly iang assets analysed bn e Compam 1 for Stage U Wie tandtame wsed is mons Uan | veor

Tn derenminiog the sboe PD's an effoct is made io climisale malicrs for 3 particetar absen ation pecod which are oot likaly 1 hoppen in e Accordingly  the Company dotermuncs PD {or cach stale depending
upon {ve wnderly g slassilestion of assa (i e Stoge | or $ace 1)

March 31 .08 March 312004
<

Andlira Pradeds 3 H

FAd b St

devehopacris and coonanic slook. e Company s assessed that no adjusinnent is requored for lemporany oaerln s 1o deleonive qoalivais¢ impaet on i1s PDFs as an Mareh

B} Exposwre M defauli (EAD)
Tl oungtomding balaces a5 ai Lhe reporting dake 15 considered ¢ EAD br the Conpasn Conssderg thot the PD detcnnmed oboyve (oolers w anesnt 3t defanlt there 15 CPArALE reu o estnmare EAD
'} Lass given delh

The Comparr. detenines iis Sxpectaleon of Lifeline loss by cstinualing rocescrics Lowards its endire ban portfolio an statz tevel throwgh analysis of histoneal informaation The Compan, detennues its téconéry rates by
analysing the recanars irends o or different perods of' tinke after 2 Ioan has defaulicd Bascd on its analysis of historical wrends the Company has assessod thal significant weovenics happey i he 3 eor i which defmlo
has occurred Accordingly. it belicves wo sianifi il aris¢ {reun di ing such reeenerics for detennimng, ulimate boss s bn estinating LG, e Compam muicus magro-ceonomic derclopments
taking place in the eonoon

A sy of LGDY rares delomuined by (e Compann. are given below

Murch 31. 3020 Murch 3t UHY
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March 3. Hrbie Pllsirrls 31 2010
AN RRTL

TIHI I

37.2 Liguitlity Risk
Laguadity pisk refers Lo the nisk il Uk Company iy nod miset ils financal oblaiens Liquidity rish anses duc to the wiayailability of sdequate fimsds 21 an sppropnaie cost or lenure The cbjectne of liquduy risk
i i 10 MDD Sull liquidins oed ensure Uan funds are as ailable for vse as per requiremients The Company consisieully genceates sulTicient cash (low s (rom eperating and lnpe ing setivinics 1o nwel
its Jinoneial obligations 25 and wiken hex Tall doe Our resonrce mobili-ation team sources funds from mulipls sources including from banks., financiol mstitulions aud capilot markets 1o maintain a healiby nus of
spurces Th respiarce nobilicalion 1eam i responsible for diersify mg fmdrising sources monaging micrest rde nsks and mantameng a sicong relotionship with bavks {imancial inshituions. mulyal funds, msurance
conpaics, other darmesi ad forzign Mmancial wshitalions md coting agencics Lo cnsurs the Jiquidds nisk 15 well addrossed I order to reduce dependence on a sngle londer, the Company has adopled a zop on
borrawing from am single knder o The watwniix schodnde for all Guranzial labilitics and assets ore regularly revicvcd and momtored Compans hos a 2ssct habilin. management (ALS) pebiey and ALM
Conmmintes 1o review and mouitor the ligoidity risk and cnsure the compliance w Ml b preseribad reguldon reguiremen The ALM Polizy p ibos e devailed gidclings for it the Tiquidity rish

Thee vables below pros ide derails dine. the ¢ | mavuritics of sienifican financial assets and labihies 25 on -

Particulurs Upte ¥ monib 1 102 months 2403 manihs 340 6 munihs 6 menils to 1 110 3 ycurs JeoSycars  DuerSacurs Tarad
Parrn gl
Cilier Financial Liabilites 13 336,947 2 GUB 2 3¢ 16.145,781
Advancos 1 TFT N LA A SILY [ EA L ] 3 GET 7T A4S TANFE. 2R SR
Dnher Finoncial Asscls 3200 e PRI SN T GAL TRLIKR1IRY

“Represcnis debt securities: bomow wgs (other than debi secoritics) and soboedinated lisblinies

** As per e Conid-17 regulaon packace ammoied b RBI 1 mitigaie e borden of debd ser iy brought aboul by disroplions on accownt of COVID-12 pandenne vide Circular Mo RBIZOI-21 46 &
DOFR. to BF BC 4721 04 iR2019-20, the Compam bas culonded moralonuin ko its borowers whose loans were siandard as on March 00 2020, (or the peviod Apeil 01 20240 o May 31, 2020 Howee, the
repan e schedule for snch loous as also the residual enor i3 shificd across e board by two mosths Furher. (ke samc moraonion las been amaiked b (e Compann 1owards pan mcnls vader <ccuriticalion
ATdngemcl

Particulurs Lipte T momth 110 2 menihs 210 3 months 3 10 6 manilhs & mm:lw wl 1te ¥ years Jto S ycars |Dher Saears Toal
Bormrowines® S got 471 21 i 631 1% 51332 4SRN EUR TR ST AEARE
37131 1 ERY_TTI
121 g55931 FHILMR 23] 53 Sux 534 b YT 1351 35 [NELAT IR

Miher Finnnrinl Acacts
*Represenis deba securi

bomow ines

373 Markud Rizk
Marhet rish bs 4l ich fal e Cair yafue or fuluce eash Novs of a financial istrunicent will Moctuale becawse of changes i markel faclor Such changes i Uk «alucs of Hinancial wstrwnerds may eesoll fram changes n
1k vcrest raics credit Tiquidite and other niarked changes The Company is cxposed 10 1o b pos of market nsks as [ollows:

1 3u Imterest exde risk

Inberest rabo gk is the risk thaw the future cash Nows of o financial instrumend will Muctuale beeawse of changes mmarkel interest ralcs

W ore subjoct b alercst eaie nsk. principally because we lend 1o cliouls 3l fived interest ralos and For periods thal may duTer from our funding spurccs. winle our borrowings arc a1 beih fivod and vaniable tilcrest
rales for dulerent periods W assess and manaue our iMerest raKe risk by managing oor asscls and liabilities Qur Assel Lisbilie Monagenent Commigies ¢valnales assed liobility monagenent and ensurs that all
signilicant mosmakches, iFany arc being manoged appropriaich

The Compan: has Board Approved Asscl Liabilin Managenocnd (ALM b pohcs Tor managing mercel rate risk 20d policy Tor detcnuwining Ui imcress rne 1o be charged on il loans yiven

The Tollowing lable demonsirates the scusiin iy 1o a reasonobly possiblc change m he interest rates on the: porioi of bormos ings alTected With 2T other 4 aniables held const. e peofil before Lax is afected
Hirough e inipact on Mealime rale bormewings a3 fllows;

wole ;A borrowings sulsatanding ag on 3143 21240 are Mvod intorest mic ralc
37.%b Price Risk
The Company 3 ciposore to prce ngk s nol material and il is primarils on accound of enl of leomporan: ircasun surph in the highly liquid debl funds for very short durations The Conrpany bas 2 board

approsed pohes of innesting i siplius (ks in highik raved debt inutual funds and ek instruents liaving msignificant price nisk, nol being cquity funds/ risk bearing instruncnls

34: Employ ee Stock Oprion Plws (ESOP)

Particulars Gramt Number of Oyptions  Vesting Perioill In Vesting Conditions

FROIP Schome Mg

Exercisg period Tor all U abotc schenies 1s *F voars from the dobe of gram of the oplions
The expeuse recoeniscd for cinpdos e¢ soruces rocens od durine Lthe <caris Rs 5 733107



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Metes 1o the Financial Scatements For the year emded Maich 51, 2020

Particulars

Date of Girani

Dare of Board / Comp

MNumber of Dptions Granted

Method of setttement

iended Vasnne Period

Day lollowing the expiry of 12 months from grant
Day followmng the expiry of 24 months from prant
Day Fellowmy the expiry of 36 months Ffrom jrant
Day followng the expiry of 4B months Mtom wrant
Day following the expiry of 80 moaths From wrant

Exeraise Penod

YWesting condibons

Weithied average of remaining contracrual Life i Years

Particulars

Lapsed during the periodf year
Cruistanding at the end of the period’ year *
*There arc no options exercisable ar the end of penod

Detaits of Stock Opions gramted duriog fke year

date of grant
Employce must
¢ n service at
the fime of
vesting
TR
8- ended March 31, 2020 have been summarised as below
Gramt 11E
13,500
7,500
6,000

Grami [11
7-Feb-1$
T-Feb-15

13,500
Equity

L
Ll L
202
PR

# Years from the

(Amouat n rupees unless ctherwse stated)

Thi weighied fair value of siock ophiom grated durmyg the year was Rs 192 %1 for Grant 11 The Black -Scholes Model has been wsed for computing the weighted average (air vajue considerm the followmy:

want -TII Tramche 1 Temnche 11
171 3% 317 3%
Fxerrice Prica 263 263 35
Expected Volanhni®alh 47 13% 47 E3%
50 54
Risk Frae Interest Raler®s} 7287 T 38%
Exnected dinidend raie %al LY [ 11 %)
183 7 100 3%
39: Disch of i img and fi ing tramspctions ihat de not eequive the wse of cash and cash equivalents
MName of insdryment Comveried isto
Eouitv Share canital 4% 444 100
Toaal Bomowinies 501 806 249
EXA_TTOARD
DSLIment Ooeaine Balance Canverted into
295601930 231.0%7.930
857.300. 168
ARG KT 10K 2ALOTOH

40. Revenwe from contracts with custamers

Particulars

Tene of wrrvices

Service fees for of assiuned ponfelio of loans
Service and sdminisration charres

Cemmission & other lncome

Tadal

Particulury
India

Dutside India
Total

Farticulars

Impairmeni allowance recounised on receivables 15 Nil (Previous vear: Nil)

March JI. 1020 March 31. H0I9

SE932915 ) 71937028 {0
FIERY X RLT ] T1 937 IR W

March 31202 Mareh 31,2009

4193293500 THO3T.028 00

41.532.935.00 T1.937.028.00

Marrh 31 M March T M0

41932935 00 TI 9T 028 00

41937 935 (W TLOAT.2A.H

Muarch 31,2020 March 30. X019
R A4S0 GdY DN K PR WY

Tranche 111

i is
263 35
47 13%

Al
T8
£ nirsn
197 R

LUash Flows

533 379 100
AIL3TOMN

Cash Flows
18 502 170
(355 SOLEVE)
1336400 TORY

Tranrhe IV

Ll ey

263 35

47 13%

[

T42%

0 0

Hid 14

Closine Balanee
AR 360 1W
1135 1B5 385
LIR1.A4% IRY

Clasine Balames
279562030
501 806289

TRI AR 326



CRISE FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

41 Aduiionad Inkemanion roguined by Reserse Baok of Inkia dewer Direcrion INBR PO, SR 1011920 1617 (hercinalier mierred b os the "RBI Mesier Direclivn™) & POR (NBFC)

CC PN HENEE 10 06003220

LRATL 06 L March 31 2040 hus been delonaieod wy
il o of I A Slanulapd bingly CRAR For March 31 JC o5 i comypeanaik:

bropery b ASMT [ALT I
m
It resmboniiah buibling s nadti-tononkal al prewdass. muslrial or el spce hiels
At oMl i che | Bounl
o OunAnduieg o Loniws it sty of podd o o poi et b vsdal nsels oml
o The Cinenin hus ng cpieare 1o ekl markel
# Assel Hakillly minagemenl
Purticulurs -7 Duny -1 D 13-31J1 Ly 2 to J owathn 3w b mwmthi 1w bveard
Ad et bry TN o Lt dhe Taimden of dudil worivig brought st b dismglics o oo of COVIDE 1 aunbamie vide Cinoular WMo RUDF20 -1 & DO N B8

Conpan i et noroning o ibs rrotery s bt wens sLasband s o barch 00 2000 Foe (e poriod April40 2000w hls 30 3200 Dhooee. ther foqsitntnl s leadibe for sl loa o2 alar s redidwal s

mnilss Fuarthir, Uia satne mofanrisimt s haot i diked by the Copuin gl onmmis ey saairitszation smageinsan

Upto 1 mwiath
RIRELE S MBS OM
ad [ [LIETES |08 TRE 4TS
= Mool O P i Lo dinil e T iOTa e Joais somd ielvaies
Nuture of frumd N, 0 Cuvs Amount of Reewen®  Amsount provided
e
Natwre: of fraud No. of cases Amsant of Recwmery™  Ampunt prosided
Mrand
16 9l Jia 9l
1 565 Gkl 113462 LINEY
[ L
£ Tie Company lues o iransscrlons / 21 posurs in dom atncs i e cureol aod pres ipus sear
Sr Mo Imvtrument Hathng asugacd
Lo PR
KHRA ThA Heo M
h
Faare 1 Tl canng is subject i annugl suncillance il fingt repa, meni £ redeniplion of rancd Eilifics
B M Instrument As per fimal | Raving wwimnud
mmtdmn Lattim
ik, | ot (] odigs ICKA Sz Mok
.
Bode 1 The mdlog is subgect o repay ool

= HaWira| W4 2INOL0 adLAda g vt e MR s [Th ok
7 Ropnoa sigce U loans uwlbug alenos

LR

Borraning Limil

AR
MALET T

1w J vears

Milrad |51
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it ol thi: BRI Sl [ Drcutmmis el winh KD odabbeat i BTEES0 S HNET0E EORCSTIEC T OO 1L Mo (0833 110 DA 1% 200 e Sareh 13 2000 o

iw S vears

T

i huifb] acrwis i Toan] ba pan

T

LT
H LEZTASTEN
L]



CRISS FINARCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Motes du the Finmnciul Salements fer the year cnded forch 31 2028

As 2l Murch J, 2020 A5t Macch JL, ZRIY

0.00% H
Wiy
Lt
n
o
o
= Repre-aains slape (L oo

aad Assel O,

1; Comparivon belween jrrorisiony requined usder facome
AS 1% for ibe vear ondol Murech 30, 2020

dAnnaml e o s ol pse <Liked

nd Prov iykom normy { IRACTE ) ay por RB] masier dicections aml impaicmeent allow ancey made wader nd

et Chensish " Clanificarion ST eaTying I:uu-p- Mot Carrylng  Proviciess s per " el AS
e por BB1 i il AK A-:;’. Pogalirud i o lad Attt IRACE parms ':‘w
™ AS
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CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in tupees unless otherwise stated)

NP
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
Net NPAs to net advances (%) 0.03% 0.00%
Movement of NPAs (gross)
1. Opening balance 0 258096
2. Additions during the vear 587.995 292410
3. Reductions during the vear {108.183) (550.505)
4, Closing balance 479812 0
Movement of Net NPAs
1.  Opening balance 5517
2. Additions during the vear 455,572 6,365
3. Reductions during the vear I} {11.882)
4.  Closing balance 455,572
Movement of orovision for NPAs fexcl. standard assets)
I.  Opening balance 252578
2. Provisions made during the vear 132,423 286045
3. Write off/ write back of excess provisions {108,183} (538623
4. Closing balance 24,240

m. There has been no drawdown from reserves during the current year and previous year
n. Investments:

Particulars Mareh 31. 2020 March 31. 2019
1.Value of investments

{i¥ Gross value of investments

fal InIndia

by Ouside India

fii} Provision for deprectation

fa) Inlndia

by Ouside [ndia

{iii} Net value of investments

{a) Inlndia

{by OQutside India

2. Movement of provisions held towards denrecation

Opening balance

Add: Provision made during the vear

Less: Write offf write back

Closinz balance

0. The Company has not sold financial assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction companies for asset reconstruction in the current
p. The Company has not purchased / sold non-performing financial assets in the current and previous vear.

q.The company has not financed any products of the parent company.

r. Unsecured Advances — Refer note 6

s. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:

The Company is registered with the *Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ {Financial regulators as described by Ministry of

t. No penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators during current and previous year



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

u. Provisions and contingencies {shown under expenditure in statement of profit and loss}

Particulars March 31, 2020
Provision for income tax (net}) 51.549.354
Provision for non-performing assets

Provision for standard assets 6.651.838
Provision for theft & fraud

Provision for eratuity 207033
Provision for leave benefits 479,356
Provision for insurance claims 108.115
Provision for bonus 3.524.731

Provision for other assets
* Represents impairment allowance on stage [1] loans
** Represents impairment allowance on stage | and stage II loans

v. The Company has no uthedged foreign currency exposure.

42.CSR

Particulars 31-Mar-2¢

a) Gross amount reauired to be spent by the Company durine the vear 2,328,130.00
b) Amount spent during the year on purposes other than construction/acquisition 2,404,400.00
of anv asset

Paid 2.018.100.00
Yet to be paid 386.300.00
Total 2,404,400.00

March 31. 2019
36.678.954

{651.1671

69.101
462,394
{108.024)
1.075.658

31-Mar-19
1,154,8838.00

1,154,888.00
1,154,888.00

43. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.

44: There have been no events after the reporting date that require adjustment / disclosure in these financial

As per our report of even date
For Raju and Prasad For and on behalf
Chartered Accountants Criss

regisiration number ; (034758

a Gangireddy
Partner Director
Membership No.022738 DIN No. 00004842
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: 02-06-2020 Date: 02-06-2020

statements.

of Directors of
Limited

Director
DIN No. 06436957
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